
NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

  
18 January 2021 

 
 
 
 

Chairman:  Councillor Robert Waltham 
MBE 

 

Venue:  Virtual meeting 
Microsoft Teams 

 
Time:  3.00 pm E-Mail Address:  

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1.   Welcome and Introductions   

 
2.   Substitutions   

 
3.   Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Personal or Personal 

and Prejudicial interests   
 

4.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board held on 21 December 2020.  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

5.   Forward Plan and Actions from previous meetings   
Update on the NHS Phase 3 Recovery Plan by the Chief Operating Officer, 
North Lincolnshire CCG 
 

6.   Questions from members of the public   
 

PLEASE NOTE, ALL PAPERS WILL BE TAKEN ‘AS READ’ TO 
ENCOURAGE DISCUSSION  
 

 

7.   COVID-19 - Outbreak Management and Control.  (Pages 5 - 8) 
Report and Presentation by the Deputy Chief Executive and the Director of 
Public Health. 
 

8.   COVID-19 - Vaccination Programme.  (Pages 9 - 12) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer, NLCCG.   
 

9.   Integrated Working - Children.   
Report by the Director: Children and Community Resilience (If any). 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD 

Public Document Pack



 

10.   Integrated Working - Adults.   
Report by the Director: Adults and Community Wellbeing (If any) 
 

11.   Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report, 2019/20.  (Pages 13 - 62) 
Report by the Director: Adults and Community Wellbeing 
 

12.   Recovery and Responding to Winter Pressures.  (Pages 63 - 66) 
Report by the Chief Operating Officer, NLCCG.   
 

13.   Integrating Care: Next Steps for Building Strong and Effective Integrated 
Care Systems Across England.   
Verbal update. 
 

14.   Date and time of next meeting: 22 February 2021, 9.00am   
 

15.   Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent by reason of special 
circumstances which must be specified.   
 

 
 



15 

 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

21 December 2020 

 

PRESENT: - Councillor Waltham MBE in the Chair 

 

Statutory (voting) Members - Dr Faisel Baig (Vice-Chair), Carrie Butler, Mick Gibbs, 

Simon Green, Karen Pavey 

 

Non-Statutory Members - Foluke Ajayi, Pete Allman, ACC Paul Anderson, Jilla 

Burgess-Allen, Cllr Hannigan, Tom Hewis, Denise Hyde, Dr Peter Reading, Cllr Reed, 

and Alex Seale.  

 

Cllrs Davison, L Foster, O’Sullivan and Wilson attended the meeting in accordance 

with Procedure Rule 37(b). 

 

Dean Gillon was also in attendance.  

 

The meeting was held virtually via MS Teams. 

 

341 WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS - The Chairman welcomed all those present 

to the meeting and invited all attendees to introduce themselves.  

 

342 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND 

PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS – There were no 

declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and personal or personal and prejudicial 

interests. 

 

343 MINUTES - Resolved - That the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 

Board, held on 16 November 2020, be approved as a correct record. 

 

344 FORWARD PLAN AND FORTHCOMING ACTIONS – The Director: Governance 

and Partnerships confirmed that the Forward Plan was up to date, and that all 

forthcoming actions were timetabled.   

                   

Resolved – That the situation be noted.    

 

345 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC – There were no questions 

from members of the public. 

 

346 COVID-19 OUTBREAK PREVENTION AND MANAGEMENT UPDATE– The 

Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director: Commercial submitted a report and 

presentation on progress against each of the seven themes in the North Lincolnshire 

Outbreak Prevention & Management Plan.  This included key areas of focus for the 

outbreak prevention and management in North Lincolnshire for the forthcoming period, 

and an outline of North Lincolnshire’s position in relation to risk alert level and local 

restrictions. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

          21 December 2020 
 

16 

 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director: Commercial explained that North 

Lincolnshire Council was committed to working with local people to keep them safe, 

well, prosperous and connected. Successful prevention and management of local 

outbreaks was vital to break the chains of COVID- 19 transmission and enable people 

to return to and maintain a more normal way of life. 

 

On 23 November 2020 Government published the COVID-19 Winter Plan. This plan 

set out the programme for suppressing the virus, protecting the NHS and the vulnerable, 

keeping education and the economy going and providing a route back to normality. The 

Government’s objectives were to:  

 

 Supress the virus – bring the R number below 1 and keep it there. Measures 

included the use of restrictions.  

 Finding new and more effective ways of managing the virus and enabling life to 

return closer to normal. This included:  

o Vaccines – following approval of the Pfizer BionNTech vaccine a UK 

wide vaccination programme commenced on 8 December 2020.  

o Treatment – effective treatments would continue to be vital to manage the 

virus even as vaccines are rolled out  

o Mass community testing – strengthened targeted community testing 

would support the identification and isolation of people who do not have 

symptoms but are unintentionally spreading the virus.  

 Minimise damage to the economy and society, jobs and livelihoods. This meant 

ensuring the right support is available for jobs and that early year's settings, 

schools, further education providers and universities continued their excellent 

work in ensuring a safe environment for students to learn.  

 

A detailed presentation was then delivered on the epidemiological situation in North 

Lincolnshire.  This included the total number of cases, comparison date, the current R 

Value, and the rolling 7-Day Case Rate.  

 

Resolved - That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the presentation and the Outbreak 

Prevention and Management Update. 

 

347 COVID-19 VACCINATION PROGRAMME – The Chief Operating Officer, North 

Lincolnshire CCG, submitted a report updating the Health and Wellbeing Board on the 

latest position of the Covid-19 Vaccination Programme.  The report covered the phase 

1 model of the programme including the early priority cohorts and how they would be 

managed.  

 

The Chief Operating Officer explained that all GP practices had been asked to 

collaborate to identify one suitable premises from which their Primary Care Network 

(PCN) Grouping would be capable of delivering the requirements of the Covid 

Vaccination Enhanced Service. It was anticipated that 3 further PCN sites which had 

been approved by NHS England would come online quickly to support the further roll-

out of the vaccine.  These sites would provide good geographic coverage locally. 

          

 

Page 2



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

          21 December 2020 
 

17 

 

The Chief Operating Officer provided more up-to-date information on the roll-out, 

including locations and operational plans.  The Deliver Manager, Healthwatch North 

Lincolnshire, confirmed that they were supporting the roll-out and that initial feedback 

was very positive. 

 

The Board discussed the report further, highlighting the need for consistent, effective 

communications, and thanking the front-line staff for their efforts. 

 

Resolved - That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the contents of the Vaccination 

Programme report. 

 
348  INTEGRATED WORKING – CHILDREN. WINTER GRANT SCHEME.  The 

Head of Early Help and Protection submitted a report updating the Health and 

Wellbeing Board on the local implementation of the government’s recently announced 

COVID Winter Grant Scheme.  A decision on implementing the Winter Grant Scheme 

had been taken by the Children and Families Cabinet Member on 9 December 2020.   

 

The Head of Early Help and Protection explained that the government had announced 

the introduction of the £170 million COVID Winter Grant Scheme - a package of extra 

targeted financial support for those in need over the winter period. The funding 

allocation for North Lincolnshire was £532,566, which was released in the first week 

of December 2020 and which would run until the end of March 2021. 

 

Government guidance issued by the Department for Work and Pensions stated that ‘the 

objective of the COVID Winter Grant Scheme was to provide support to vulnerable 

households and families with children particularly affected by the pandemic throughout 

the winter period where alternative sources of assistance may be unavailable’. The clear 

focus of the Scheme was to help those in most need with the cost of food, energy, water 

bills and other essentials. 

 

Considerable flexibilities had been given to Local Authorities in determining their own 

local eligibility framework and approach, with the ability to deliver the scheme through 

vouchers or grants, or other mechanisms. As such, the Head of Early Help and 

Protection described how the council had working with schools, the local voluntary 

sector, and other local organisations to deliver the Scheme, and to use local knowledge 

and data to identify and prioritise support for specific vulnerable groups. 

 

Cllr Reed spoke to support the scheme, stating that it was very good news for local 

people and it was an excellent example of organisations working together to benefit 

local communities. 

 

Resolved – That the Health and Wellbeing Board note and support the local 

implementation of the COVID Winter Grant Scheme. 

 

349 INTEGRATING CARE:  NEXT STEPS FOR BUILDING STRONG AND 

EFFECTIVE INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEMS ACROSS ENGLAND – The 

 Director of Strategic Transformation / Locality Director of Humber, Coast and Vale 

Integrated Care System (ICS) introduced the paper and consultation document, 

Page 3



HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

          21 December 2020 
 

18 

 

explaining that place-based partnerships allowed improvements in collaboration and 

service delivery.  The Director confirmed that the approach taken by the Humber, Coast 

and Vale ICS was very closely aligned with that set out in the documents. 

 

 The Board discussed the paper in detail.  The Chairman expressed a view that, whilst 

there was an acceptance that some commissioning and service development and 

delivery may benefit from a wider footprint, the concept of ‘place’ was understood 

locally as North Lincolnshire.  This view was echoed by other Board members, stating 

that the place of North Lincolnshire must always take primacy, in order to allow for 

local accountability, the retention of resources, local knowledge, and to build upon the 

excellent work that occurs within the North Lincolnshire geographic boundary.   

 

 Board members also expressed the view that there must be a greater understanding that 

genuine integrated care must go significantly beyond traditional NHS service planning 

and delivery.   

 

 The Director of Strategic Transformation agreed with the views expressed, highlighting 

examples where wide collaboration with a range of partners and sectors was already 

taking place, and stating that North Lincolnshire was absolutely recognised as a ‘place’. 

 

 Resolved – That suitable submissions be drafted and returned, reflecting the view that 

local organisations will support partnerships which add value, whilst ensuring the 

continued recognition of North Lincolnshire as a place which works for local 

communities.   

 

350 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING – The Chairman confirmed that the next 

Board meeting was on 18 January 2021 at 3pm, to be conducted via MS Teams.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4



Report of the: Deputy Chief Executive                Agenda Item 7 
and the Director of Public Health                        Meeting 18 January 2021  

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 

COVID-19 OUTBREAK PREVENTION AND MANAGEMENT 
UPDATE 

 
 
 

1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT 
 

 
1.1 Progress update against each of the themes in the North 

Lincolnshire Outbreak Prevention & Management Plan 
 

1.2 Key areas of focus for the outbreak prevention and management in 
North Lincolnshire for the forthcoming period 

 
 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

 
2.1 North Lincolnshire Council is committed to working with our local people to 

keep them safe, well, prosperous and connected. Successful prevention and 
management of local outbreaks is vital to break the chains of COVID- 19 
transmission and enable people to return to and maintain a more normal way 
of life. 

 
2.2 Cases of coronavirus continue to rise across the country and on 4 January the 

COVID alert level was increased to Level 5 which means there is a risk of 
healthcare services being overwhelmed. As a result, the Prime Minister 
announced a new national lockdown was being introduced. This became law 
on 7 January 2020 and the legislation is effective until 31 March 2021, with 
reviews taking place every 14 days. The ‘Stay Home – Protect the NHS – 
Save Lives’ campaign has also resumed. 

 
2.3 Cases of COVID-19 are also rising in North Lincolnshire and also across all 

Humber authority areas, with evidence of the new variant being present in our 
area. Currently the case rate in North Lincolnshire is approximately half the 
rate of that in England. All Humber areas have seen an increase in COVID-19 
deaths in recent weeks. 

 
2.4 The council continues to lead local outbreak prevention and management, 

within a national framework and with the support of NHS Test and Trace, PHE 
and other government departments.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



2.5 A system-wide approach to the roll out of targeted testing and the COVID-19 
vaccination programme across North Lincolnshire is underway.  

 
2.6 The North Lincolnshire Outbreak Prevention and Management Plan sets out 

our collaborative and preventive approach and we continue to monitor case 
data on a daily basis and target resources as appropriate to prevent and reduce 
transmission across the area. 

 
2.7 Progress update - A summary of the progress made to date against each of 

the key themes in the North Lincolnshire Outbreak Prevention and 
Management Plan along with priority actions and next steps is given below. 

 
2.7.1  Care Homes 
• The situation across care homes has improved recently with a decrease 

in residents and staff testing positive. The priority focus continues to be 
centred on preventative activity and supporting care homes experiencing 
outbreaks. 

• The programme of vaccinations in care homes has commenced. 
• Some care homes are making use of lateral flow tests with staff and 

visitors, with confirmatory PCR tests being undertaken or any positive 
results. 

 
2.7.2 Education settings 
• The national lockdown in place has required schools and colleges to move 

to remote learning methods until February half term. 
• Schools, colleges and early years settings are however currently open for 

vulnerable children and children of essential workers. 
• Local monitoring systems are being re-instated regarding attendance. 
• Arrangements to introduce mass testing in schools continues. 

 
2.7.3 High-risk workplaces, communities and locations 
• There are no significant outbreaks in businesses across North 

Lincolnshire at present and proactive work to prevent outbreaks 
continues. 

• Community transmission is rising in North Lincolnshire and is currently in 
line with rising case rates in the Yorkshire and Humber area. 

• Covid marshals have been appointed and are undertaking proactive work 
to ensure that communities are safe. 
 

2.7.4 Local testing 
• Local testing continues with sufficient capacity to meet current demand. 
• The Mobile Testing Unit continues to be deployed in a targeted manner. 
• North Lincolnshire has received its first allocation of Lateral Flow Testing 

kits and a targeted approach to deployment is being undertaken. 
 

2.7.5 Contact tracing  
• Local contact tracing continues with a contact rate of 98% being 

achieved. This compares to a rate of circa 85% made by the National 
Test and Trace Service. 

Page 6



• Arrangements to translate initial contact postcards into a range of 
community languages is in development. 

 
2.7.6 Data integration 
• Robust systems for data collection and integration are now in place and 

are being utilised to provide insight and intelligence to support decision 
making and target preventative activities. 

  
2.7.7 Vulnerable people and diverse communities 
• Approximately 7000 people identified as clinically extremely vulnerable 

(CEV) are expected to become eligible for shielding support once again 
and staff and the voluntary sector are being deployed as necessary to 
respond to demand. 

• Financial support continues to be given to eligible individuals who have 
been told to self-isolate. 

• Where possible rough sleepers continue to be put into accommodation. 
• A renewed focus on wider vulnerable groups and communities has been 

initiated, with a particular focus on encouraging communities to look out 
for and support each other. 

 
2.7.8 Vaccinations 
• COVID-19 vaccinations are currently being administered across North 

Lincolnshire with the number of vaccination facilities increasing by the 
week.  

• All Primary Care Network (PCN) areas now have operational vaccination 
sites along with a forward supply chain of vaccines in place. The current 
priority focus for vaccinations is the over 80s age cohort, health and social 
care staff and care home residents.  

 
 
3. OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
3.1 The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to consider the report and note 

the work undertaken to date by the Health Protection and Outbreak 
Management Group, and the planned next steps to ensure we prevent 
outbreaks of COVID-19 and respond effectively and early to emerging 
outbreaks. 

 
4. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 

 
4.1 Successful prevention and management of local outbreaks is vital to break 

the chains of COVID-19 transmission, along with rollout of community 
testing and vaccinations to enable people to return to and maintain a more 
normal way of life. 

 
 
5. FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (e.g. 

LEGAL, HR, PROPERTY, IT, COMMUNICATIONS etc.) 
 

5.1       Financial implications associated with the councils Covid-19 response 
and recovery continue to be monitored. 

Page 7



6. OTHER RELEVANT IMPLICATIONS (e.g. CRIME AND  
DISORDER, EQUALITIES, COUNCIL PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL, 
RISK etc.  

 
6.1  Implications and risks associated with Covid-19 are being monitored 

constantly and mitigations being implemented as necessary. 
 
7. OUTCOMES OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 

 
7.1 A council-wide approach to assessing the impact of Covid-19 has 

been adopted. 
 
8. OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION AND CONFLICTS OF 

INTERESTS DECLARED 
 

8.1   Ongoing consultation with a range of partners and key stakeholders are   
integral to our local response to Covid-19. 

 
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
9.1 That the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the Outbreak Prevention and 

Management activity as outlined in the report. 
 

DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH    
 
Church Square House 
SCUNTHORPE 
North Lincolnshire  
DN15 6NR 
Author: Rachel Johnson 
Date: 9 January 2020 

Page 8



 

` Report of the Chief Operating Officer    Agenda Item  8 
 North Lincolnshire CCG                Meeting 18 January 2020 

 
 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 

Covid-19 Vaccination Programme latest 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Members will be aware from a previous briefing in December that the Pfizer/BioNTech Covid-
19 vaccine was approved in December 20 and that national criteria has been released on the 
priority cohorts to receive the vaccine.  The CCG was asked to work with local Primary Care 
Networks to identify designated sites for the delivery of the vaccine. The vaccine delivery 
commenced at the Wave One site, the Ironstone Centre on behalf of South Network on the 
15th December 2020 in the initial target cohort population of the > 80 year olds.  
 
Latest Update 
 
There are now 4 designated sites operation in North Lincolnshire within our 4 Primary Care 
Networks:  
 

• The Ironstone Centre, Scunthorpe (South Network) 
• Riverside Practice, Brigg (East Network) 
• Pinfold Surgery, Owston Ferry (West Network) 
• Central Surgery, Barton (North Network) 

 
Each of the networks are now actively delivering vaccination programmes and due to 
subcontracting arrangements in place can work together between each individual practice in 
North Lincolnshire and each of the designated sites so that each site can vaccinate any patient 
from any practice to provide better coverage and access. 
 
The priority cohorts that the designated sites have been asked to focus on are the > 80 year 
olds, older adults’ resident in a care home and care home workers and health and social care 
workers. 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT  
 
The purpose of the report is to update the Health and Wellbeing Board on the latest 
position of the Covid-19 Vaccination Programme. 
 
This report covers the phase 1 model of the programme including the early priority 
cohorts and how they will be managed.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



 

South Primary Care Network were the first to go live as our Wave One site at the Iron Stone 
Centre on 15th December 2020.  The East Network went live as our wave two site on the 17th 
December. The first target population was the > 80s population due to the complexities in 
transporting the vaccine.  Subsequently advice was received that the vaccine could be 
transported to care homes and the care home vaccination campaign commenced in North 
Lincolnshire in the week before Christmas.   
 
This week West Primary Care Network and North Network have both gone live delivering 
vaccines to the three initial priority cohorts.   
 
In addition the hospital hub at Scunthorpe General Hospital has now gone live week 
commencing 4th January. The focus of the hospital hub is staff within the hospital but they will 
also be working with the Networks to vaccinate staff in other staff groups across the 
community. We have also been asked to focus with immediate priority on vaccination of front 
line health and social care staff.    
 
A second vaccine the AstraZeneca vaccine has now been licensed and some supplies of this 
vaccine will be available through the PCN designated sites.   
 
A Covid vaccination coordination group has been established that meets on a daily basis to 
ensure effective communication between the CCG, PCNs and the local authority.   
 
Further updates will be provided as we progress through the programme.  
 

 
3. OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

3.1 The Paper is for information only. 
 
4. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 
  

4.1     The Paper is for information only. 
 

5. FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (e.g. LEGAL, HR, 
PROPERTY, IT, COMMUNICATIONS etc.) 

  
5.1     All required equipment is being provided free as part of the Vaccination 

Programme.  
 
6. OTHER RELEVANT IMPLICATIONS (e.g. CRIME AND DISORDER, 

EQUALITIES, COUNCIL PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL, RISK etc.)      
 

6.1 There is a security risk at the vaccination sites which Humberside Police 
are aware of and are liaising with PCNs on.  

 
7. OUTCOMES OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 
 

7.1     Not applicable. 
  
 
 

Page 10



 

8. OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION AND CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 
DECLARED 

 
8.1     Not applicable. 
 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

9.1      This report is for information only. 
 

DIRECTOR OF Chief Operating Officer North Lincolnshire CCG 
 

 
Church Square House 
SCUNTHORPE 
North Lincolnshire 
Post Code 
Author: Adam Ryley 
Date: 04 January 2020 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report – None 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Safeguarding Adults Board Independent Chair 
Agenda Item No: 11  

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 

 

Local Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2019/20 

 

 
 
 

 

 

2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

2.1  The Care Act places the council’s duties in respect of safeguarding adults with care 
needs who are at risk of abuse or neglect on a statutory basis. 

2.2  The LSAB has a statutory requirement to publish an annual report, which offers 
assurance that local safeguarding arrangements and partnerships help and protect 
adults with care and support needs in its area. The annual report details the work of 
the LSAB during the year to achieve its main objectives, and deliver the strategic 
plan priorities, as well as detailing the findings of any Safeguarding Adult Reviews 
(SARs) that may have been undertaken. 

2.3  The 2019/20 annual report has been approved and will be published on the NLSAB 
website. 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT

1.1 Health and Wellbeing Board to note the publication of the Local Safeguarding 
Adults Board (LSAB) Annual Report outlining the work of the LSAB and its 
members to carry out and deliver the objectives of the strategic plan.  

1.2 The contents of the report should be considered in relation to planning, 
commissioning and budget setting.  

1.2  The report demonstrates that the LSAB: 

• listens and responds to the voices of adults with care and support needs,
and adults with the lived experience

• is effective in providing help and protection to adults with care and
support needs

• effectively meets statutory obligations
• benefits from strong and consistent leadership
• has made good progress on delivering the strategic objectives laid out

within the strategic plan

Meeting 18 January 2020

Page 13

Agenda Item 11



 

2.4  The annual report is required to be distributed through relevant governance routes 
across safeguarding partner organisations. The contents of the report should be 
considered in relation to planning, commissioning and budget setting. 
Organisaniations should fully consider the contents of the annual report how they 
can improve their contributions to both safeguarding throughout their own 
organisation, and to the joint work of the LSAB.  

 
2.5 The Care Act 2014 also requires the report to be submitted to the Local Police and 

Crime Commissioner, Chief Constable, and Healthwatch via LSAB board members.  
 
2.6 The annual report provides details of progress in relation to the boards strategic 

plan, and the six strategic priorities, which are: 
 
• Prevention  
• Proportionality 
• Partnership  
• Empowerment  
• Protection  
• Accountability  

 
2.7.1 The key achievements, and the positive impacts for adults with care and support 

needs and their families highlighted within the report are: 
 

 
• There is a clear demonstrable commitment to safeguard and support adults with 

care and support needs, and their families across the area, through 
representation at the board by senior managers of all organisations. 
 

• There is a strong focus on engaging with and listening to adults, and their 
families to understand their views and experiences, these have been included 
within our strategic plan.   

 
• Adults with care and support needs were supported to design materials to 

enable them to share the safeguarding message amongst their family and 
friends, through workshops held in care homes.  

 
• Adults and their families are empowered to help them to recognise the signs of 

abuse, know how to report concerns and seek help to keep themselves and 
others safe - as a result several easy read documents have been co-produced 
and are now available on the website.  

 
• Information available to adults and their families in relation to the Mental 

Capacity Act 2005 has been strengthened. 
 

• There are strong relationships with the other key strategic partnerships – the 
Children’s Multi-agency and Resilience Safeguarding, Adults Voice Partnership, 
and the Community Safety Partnership. 

 
• To ensure that young people and their families feel supported when transitioning 

from childhood to adulthood, a joint plan with children’s services has been 
developed.   
 

Page 14



 

 
• There is ongoing development and implementation of our scrutiny and 

assurance framework, thematic and agency specific assurance events and 
practice learning line of sight events leading to changes in practice where 
appropriate.  

 
• In order to help partners make continued improvements in keeping adults safe, 

learning from reviews have been shared.  
 

• To ensure that the voice of the adult is central to safeguarding, several 7-minute 
briefings have been produced to support professionals. 

 
• To help empower adults and their families, making safeguarding personal 

training sessions have been delivered to the Cross Sector Provider Partnership.  
 
• Communications through the LSAB website have been enhanced as a means of 

sharing information and communication and publicising key documents, tools, 
and resources with adults and their families, as well as partner agencies.  

 
• The safeguarding data shows the voices of the adult and their families are being 

listened to, the data dashboard has also been updated.   
 
 
 

Future priorities  
 
The board will continue to raise awareness of safeguarding and ensure that 
safeguarding duties are embedded into partner practice. The board is committed to 
continuing to work in partnership to seek assurance and ensure that safeguarding 
practice within North Lincolnshire is continually reviewed and improved.   
 
In 2020/21 the board will be reviewing policies and procedures, considering experiences 
as a partnership to continue to improve and develop safeguarding practice. 
  
The board will be focusing on engaging with, listening to, and learning from adults and 
their families to ensure a greater awareness of their views and experiences of 
safeguarding.  

 
A key priority for the board in 2020/21 is to gain assurance from partner agencies about 
how any impact of Covid-19 on local safeguarding arrangements is being managed, 
particularly looking at how the current situation is impacting on adults who have care 
and support needs and on the effectiveness of safeguarding arrangements within North 
Lincolnshire. We will ensure that safeguarding remains a priority.  
 

 
3. OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
3.1 To note the publication of the LSAB annual report outlining what the LSAB and its 

members have done to carry out and deliver the objectives of the strategic plan.  
 
3.2  The contents of the report should be considered in relation to planning, 

commissioning and budget setting.  

Page 15



 

 
 

4. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 
 
 4.1  None, for information only 
 
 
5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCIAL, STAFFING, PROPERTY, IT) 
  
 5.1  None, for information only 
 
 
6. OUTCOMES OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 
  
 6.1  Not applicable 
 
 
7. OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION AND CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 

DECLARED 
 

7.1   There has been a range of consultation with adults who have care and 
support needs, adults with lived experience, as well as safeguarding partners 
and relevant agencies in the work of the NLASB, and implementation of the 
strategic plan. There will be further engagement opportunities as we continue 
to listen, learn, adapt, and review.  

 
8. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

8.1   To receive the LSAB Annual Report 2019/20 and consider this where 
relevant in relation to planning, commissioning and budgets setting 
processes. 

 
8.2     To note submission of the report to the following via board members to 

consider the contents of the report and how they can improve their 
contributions to both safeguarding throughout their own organisation and to 
the joint work of the board - 

 
• Leader and Chief Executive of the Council  
• Police & Crime Commissioner and Chief Constable of Humberside Police 
• Healthwatch 

 
 
Church Square House 
30-40 High Street 
Scunthorpe 
North Lincolnshire 
DN15 6NL 
 
Author: Helen Rose Board Manager 
Date:  22 December 2020 

 
 

Page 16



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

North Lincolnshire  
Safeguarding Adults Board  

Annual Report  
2019-2020  

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



 

2 
 

Foreword 

It is my pleasure to introduce the 2019 / 20 annual report for North Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board. We have had another busy and productive year as the 
report demonstrates.  As Chair of the board I would like to thank members for their 
commitment and hard work throughout the year, particularly for their support in 
developing our new strategic plan and partnership agreement, and on the progress 
that has been made in meeting the Board's strategic priorities. 

During the year, the board have been looking at strengthening existing processes 
which support the transition arrangements between childhood and adulthood, 
developing pathways to implement the transitional safeguarding arrangements. We 
continue to work positively with the new children’s safeguarding partnership 

arrangements and the overarching North Lincolnshire community safety partnership 
to streamline our priorities and address areas of common concern.  

The board continues to monitor safeguarding activity in North Lincolnshire, looking at 
how we compare regionally and with the national picture. This includes looking at 
numbers of enquiries and outcomes, the extent to which people feel involved in 
decision making throughout the enquiry, the involvement of advocates and the 
quality of local care provision. Analysing this information helps us to identify themes 
and trends in safeguarding, informing areas for future development, innovation, and 
improvement. Board members are fully committed to the principle that safeguarding 
adults is everyone’s responsibility. We want to ensure that all the communities in 

North Lincolnshire are equipped to play their part in preventing, detecting, and 
reporting neglect and abuse. 

As part of its statutory duties, the board carried out an independent Safeguarding 
Adults Review (SAR) in relation to Adult A. Significant work has been undertaken by 
partners to understand how agencies could work better together to safeguard adults 
at risk in such circumstances. The SAR has been published on our website and has 
provided us with important learning to take forward in the future. The board is 
grateful for the way in which the family and partner organisations engaged with and 
contributed to this review.  

I look forward to building on our progress and meeting the objectives identified within 
our strategic plan. As partners we will continue to learn and reflect on how we can 
work together to improve safeguarding practice within North Lincolnshire, raising 
awareness on how we all play a part in keeping people safe and making sure that 
the voices of people with lived experience are heard in everything we do. 

 

 

Page 18



 

3 
 

 

Introduction  

This Annual Report details the work carried out by the North Lincolnshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board (NLSAB), to fulfil its statutory responsibilities for strategic 
development and oversight of adult safeguarding across the North Lincolnshire area.  

The report covers the one-year period (1 April 2019 – 31 March 2020) highlighting 
the board’s progress and achievements in delivering the priorities and objectives 
identified in its agreed Strategic Plan 2019-2022. The report includes how partners 
have contributed to the work of the board to promote effective adult safeguarding.  

 

North Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board – Key Achievements 2019 / 
2020 

• Adults with care and support needs, their carers and board members have 
worked together with board members to publish its new Strategic Plan for the 
next three years (2019 -2022). 

• The board has aligned its overarching strategic priorities, objectives, and its 
subgroups to the six principles of safeguarding. 

• The board has had a sustained level of attendance and participation from 
members. There is a clear commitment to safeguard adults across the area. 

• Board partners refreshed the North Lincolnshire LSAB Partnership Agreement, 
executive leads of our member organisations have signed the document to 
signal agreement to work together within North Lincolnshire to deliver the 
ambitions as set out within the strategic plan. 

• The board has effective links with a number of strategic partnerships within 
North Lincolnshire, including Children’s Multi-Agency and Resilience 
Safeguarding Board (CMARS), Community Safety Partnership (CSP) and 
Adults Partnership. 

• The board has undertaken bespoke and participatory safeguarding workshops 
with local care homes, voluntary organisations and partner agencies. 

• The board participated in a task and finish group  to review all data dashboards 
across the Yorkshire & Humber region. 

• The quality of the social care provider sector is higher than the national average 
in North Lincolnshire, with 87% of providers rated as either good or outstanding.  

• More enquiries in North Lincolnshire than the England average led to risks 
being removed and making people be safe. 

• The board have reviewed policies and procedures to help ensure effectiveness 
in our safeguarding practise. 

• The board was part of a regional group which contributed to the completion of 
a national framework around safeguarding concern decision-making. 

 

 

 

 

Page 19

http://www.northlincssab.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/SAB-Strategic-Plan-2019-22-D.pdf
http://www.northlincssab.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/NLSAB-Partnership-Agreement-v9.pdf


 

4 
 

About the North Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board 

The NLSAB brings together partner organisations to work together to on priorities to 
reduce the risks for adults with care and support needs in respect of abuse and 
neglect. The board is a statutory partnership with specific duties and functions as set 
out within the Care Act 2014.  

The overarching purpose of the board is to ensure effective co-ordination of 
response and services to safeguard and promote the welfare of local adults who may 
be at risk of abuse and harm. It does this by -  

• Assuring itself that local safeguarding arrangements are in place as defined 
within the Care Act 2014. 

• Assuring itself that practice is person-centred, and outcome focussed. 
• Working collaboratively to prevent abuse and neglect where possible. 
• Ensuring that agencies and practitioners give timely and proportionate 

responses when abuse or neglect have occurred. 
• Assuring itself that safeguarding practice is continuously improving and 

enhancing the quality of life of adults in its area. 
 
 

The duties of the board as set out within the Care Act 2014 include:  

• The publication of a strategic plan, outlining how the board will meet its 
objectives and how member organisations will support the delivery of the plan. 

• The publication of an annual report, providing details of the work of the 
partnership to implement the strategy and achieve its objectives during the 
previous year. 

• The commissioning of Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) under section 44 
of the Care Act 2014.   
 

The NLSAB is made up of senior officers nominated by each member agency. 

Members have sufficient delegated authority to effectively represent their agency and 

make decisions on their agency’s behalf, and, if they are unable to attend board 
meetings for any reason, they send a nominated representative of sufficient 

seniority. 

Core statutory members:         
            

• North Lincolnshire Council 
• North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
• Humberside Police 

 
Additional members: 

     
• Regulated health and social care provider representative 
• Humberside Fire and Rescue Service 
• Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust 
• Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber Mental Health Trust 

Page 20



 

5 
 

• Primary care  
• National Probation Service 
• Public Health  
• East Midlands Ambulance Service 
• ONGO (housing provider) 

 
 

Advisory members: 
• Care Quality Commission 
• Healthwatch North Lincolnshire 
• Cabinet Member for Adults and Health 
• NHS England 

 

Strategic Plan  

In 2019, the board published its new strategic plan for 2019 - 2022, laying out the 
shared outcomes, goals and objectives for the next three years. The strategic plan 
was developed in partnership with adults with care and support needs, their carers 
and board members. The plan covers how the board will focus on the prevention of 
abuse and neglect as well as making sure that organisations work together to keep 
people safe when abuse has occurred, giving people choice, control, and 
involvement. 

The board’s overarching strategic priorities and objectives are aligned to the six 
principles of safeguarding, which are underpinned by fourteen strategic objectives.  

 

 

Page 21



 

6 
 

 

 

 

The NLSAB Executive Group (North Lincolnshire Council, North Lincolnshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Humberside police) and the full Safeguarding Adults 
Board monitors, and regularly reviews progress made against the strategic plan. In 
2019 the board also reviewed the delivery framework to align it to the objectives 
within the strategic plan.  

 

Page 22



 

7 
 

 
 

During 2019/20 the executive group met every six weeks, and the full board met 
quarterly. In the intervening periods the subgroups (Protection & Accountability, 
Prevention & Proportionality, and the Partnership & Empowerment) regularly met 
and carried out safeguarding activity as outlined within the strategic plan, reporting 
progress and outcomes directly to both the executive group and the board. 

The NLSAB is able to demonstrate a sustained level of attendance and participation 
from members. There is a clear commitment to safeguard adults across the area, 
through representation by senior managers of all organisations that have an 
investment in good safeguarding practice. 

Due to the COVID-19 national emergency, the fourth board meeting of the year was 
postponed to a later date and subsequently this meeting is not covered within this 
annual reporting period. 

 

Delivery Framework 

Page 23



 

8 
 

 
 

Along with the updated priorities and the new delivery structure, in 2019/20 board 
partners also refreshed the North Lincolnshire LSAB Partnership Agreement. The 
purpose of the partnership agreement is to provide all relevant partner agencies with 
a high-level description of the role and purpose of the NLSAB in relation to its 
statutory functions, local objectives, structure, operations, membership and the roles 
and expectations of its partner agency representatives.  

Executive leads for each partner agency have signed the document to signal 
agreement to work together within North Lincolnshire to deliver the ambitions as set 
out within the strategic plan.  

The partnership agreement also provides guidance for new board members, and 
agency representatives deputising for board members about the formal remit and 
operations of the NLSAB.  

Links with other partnerships.  

The board has effective links with a number of strategic partnerships within North 
Lincolnshire, including the Children’s Multi-Agency and Resilience Safeguarding 
Board (CMARS), Community Safety Partnership (CSP) and Adults Partnership. This 
co-operation has led to a stronger focus on collective learning, bringing together 
partnership working and stronger support for adults with care and support needs 
within North Lincolnshire.  

 

 

 

 

66%

33%

33%

100%

66%

66%

66%

100%

100%

100%

33%

100%

ONGO

Care Quality Commission

East Midlands Ambulance Service

Healthwatch North Lincolnshire

Humberside Fire & Rescue

Humberside Police

National Probation Service

North Lincolnshire CCG

North Lincolnshire Council

Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS trust

Provider Sector representative

Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber NHS trust

SAB Attendance 2019/20

Page 24

http://www.northlincssab.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/NLSAB-Partnership-Agreement-v9.pdf


 

9 
 

Actions completed by the NLSAB subgroups to meet its objectives.  

 

Partnership & Empowerment subgroup 
 

The Partnership and Empowerment subgroup consists of representatives from 
Humberside Police, Humberside Fire and Rescue, Healthwatch, North Lincolnshire 
Council and ONGO, and is supported by several adults with care and support needs. 
The group is chaired by Jason Frary, Station Manager, Service Delivery for 
Humberside Fire and Rescue Services.  

The group understand the value of working together with partner agencies and other 
professionals to get the best result for adults with care and support needs, and their 
families who are at risk of abuse and neglect. The group also recognise the 
importance of ensuring that the voice of adults and their families is heard, and that 
this directly informs the work of the board.   

The group have undertaken bespoke and participatory safeguarding workshops with 
local care homes, which resulted in posters and stickers being designed by a group 
of adults for use as promotional materials at local community events.  

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 25



 

10 
 

Throughout the year the group have promoted safeguarding awareness and have 
attended several community events. In July 2019, the board attended Rescue Day. 
Members of the public were invited to give their views on safeguarding adult issues 
and the information was then used help inform future practise. As a result of the 
feedback obtained the board worked with adults with care and support needs, self-
advocates and local care homes, providing them with safeguarding adult education, 
resources, and, information and tools to enable them to disseminate the 
safeguarding messages amongst their family, friends and within the local community. 

The group has facilitated a number of safeguarding training and education sessions 
with partner agencies and voluntary organisations, including Humberside Fire & 
Rescue Service community advocates; Healthwatch North Lincolnshire volunteers 
and The Forge Project who provide support to homeless people.  

 

 

 

 

Prevention & Proportionality subgroup 

The subgroup understands that to support adults who have care and support needs, 
is it important that they are given clear and simple information about what abuse is, 
how to recognise it and seek help. It is also important that a proportionate response 
is given to any safeguarding concerns, and that partner agencies work in the best 
interests of adults who have care and support needs within North Lincolnshire.  

The subgroup consists of representatives from North Lincolnshire Council, ONGO, 
Cloverleaf Advocacy Services, Humberside Police, independent provider sector, 
Northern Lincolnshire & Goole Hospitals NHS Trust, North Lincolnshire Council and 
is chaired by Sarah Glossop, Designated Nurse and Head of Safeguarding for North 
Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group.  

The group regularly review key messages from local, regional, and national 
Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs) and investigations, ensuring that any learning 
relevant to North Lincolnshire is appropriately shared and implemented. The group 
has produced several 7-minute briefings which have been disseminated amongst 

Page 26



 

11 
 

partner agencies. There are close links across all the subgroups, ensuring that 
information and learning from practice is shared with all organisations, enabling them 
to make changes or improvements that will keep adults with care and support needs 
in North Lincolnshire safer in the future.  

It is important that all partner agencies have a good understanding around the 
Mental Capacity Act (MCA) 2005, and that the five key principles are used to 
underpin all actions and decisions. The group has shared and tools and identified 
good practice, as well as reviewing and publishing additional information in relation 
to the MCA 2005 on the NLSAB website.  

A number of easy read documents have been developed and added to the website, 
including guides on how adults with care and support needs can stay safe online, 
keeping safe when using social media, and also raising awareness of fraud and 
scams within the community.  

The subgroup regularly review the safeguarding resources available on the NLSAB 
website, which includes a range of e-learning training packages such as fraud 
awareness, forced marriage and domestic abuse, ensuring that any information is 
current and up to date. The board has been assured by its partners that their 
workforce in North Lincolnshire have sufficient training at the right level to discharge 
its safeguarding responsibilities. 

The following training courses were available to the workforce during the year:  

• Safeguarding Adults Tier 1 (eLearning) – providing an overview of what is meant by 
abuse and neglect, the duty to safeguard adults with care and support needs, 
ensuring immediate safety, and how to report concerns.  

• Safeguarding Children Tier 1 (eLearning) – providing an overview of what is meant 
by safeguarding children, the duty to protect children and how to report concerns.  

• Safeguarding Adults Tier 2 – aimed at operational practitioners. Providing an 
overview of safeguarding concerns and enquiries, making safeguarding personal, 
decision making in relation to safeguarding concerns and ensuring that staff can 
apply their own organisational procedures and processes for reporting and 
documenting safeguarding adult concerns.   

• Safeguarding Adults Tier 3 – aimed at operational practitioners and managers. 
Staff are trained in how to undertake effective safeguarding enquiries, ensuring that 
enquiries are person-centred, and outcome focussed, in line with the Care Act 2014 
and best practice.  

• Mental Capacity Act & DOLs in Practice - Levels 1 and 2 – Staff are trained in the 
application of the Mental Capacity 2005 and have an understanding of the 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards.   

In addition to the courses above, a number of bespoke training packages were 
delivered in relation to; domestic abuse; fraud and financial abuse; cuckooing and 
best practice in recording. 

Page 27



 

12 
 

The group has worked to promote a continued focus on the making safeguarding 
personal (MSP) agenda, delivering bespoke training to the cross-sector provider 
partnership, emphasising the importance of informed decision making and person-
centred practice.  

 

 

 

MSP is also included within the safeguarding data dashboard, and any trends are 
monitored and responded to across the year. Overall, this year’s data evidences a 

positive trend of listening to the voice of the adult with care and support needs, and 
working with individuals to achieve their desired outcomes.  

 

 

Page 28



 

13 
 

Protection & Accountability subgroup  

The board is committed to ensuring that safeguarding arrangements, and partner 
agencies of the board act to help and protect adults who may be at risk in North 
Lincolnshire.  

The Protection & Accountability subgroup consists of representatives from 
Humberside Police, North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group, Northern 
Lincolnshire & Goole NHS Trust, Humberside Fire & Rescue, independent provider 
sector, Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber Mental Health Trust, Healthwatch, 
ONGO and is chaired by Victoria Lawrence, Head of Social Work and Assurance for 
North Lincolnshire Council.  

During 2019/20 the group completed a number of line of sight to practise audits in 
relation to financial abuse enquiries. The audit identified some areas for 
improvement, alongside some areas of positive practise.  

Learning 

• Recognising the importance of considering potential coercion.  
• Agencies being aware of their responsibilities in relation to information sharing. 
• Language used by professionals reflecting views, wishes and feelings of the 

adult at risk.  
 

Good Practice  

 
• Evidence of effective multi-agency working, providing person-centred care 

and support in line with the adult at risk’s views and wishes. 
• Evidence that agencies interacted at the earliest opportunity, in the best 

interests of the adult. 
• Evidence that professionals considered the needs of the adult, taking the time 

to ensure information was understood and retained following visits and 
meetings. 

• Evidence that immediate risks were removed and / or reduced in a timely 
manner. 

• Evidence that the adult was supported to meetings by professionals, who 
ensured views and wishes were heard and acted upon. 

 
Results of the audits were fed back to the practitioners concerned, including where 
there was evidence of good practice. Several recommendations were made which 
will be taken forward and monitored by the Prevention & Proportionality subgroup, 
ensuring that all future learning is shared more widely, and is implemented by 
partners.  
 
In 2019/20 the Protection & Accountability subgroup developed a plan in co-
ordination with children’s services to ensure that there is an improved quality of 
transition experience for young people. The aim of the plan is to ensure that young 
people and their families feel supported transitioning from childhood to adulthood.  
 

Page 29



 

14 
 

In 2019/20 board members also completed a joint assurance focussed visit, in with 
the Children’s MARS Board to a partner agency. Dates for future joint visits have 
been identified for 2020/21.  

As a result of the ongoing commitment to improve the quality and consistency of 
safeguarding data, the group was part of a task and finish group facilitated by the 
Association of Directors of Adults Social Services (ADASS) to review all data 
dashboards across the Yorkshire & Humber region.  

The group has since established an updated safeguarding data dashboard, which 
provides quarterly performance information. The data is then used to highlight any 
emerging themes in relation to safeguarding, and formulating any actions required to 
improve practice.  

 

Safeguarding Adults Data in 2019/20 

 

 

During 2019/20 1616 safeguarding concerns were received, 715 became 
safeguarding enquiries and a total of 571 safeguarding enquiries were 
completed during the year.  

 

Page 30



 

15 
 

 
Over the last three years North Lincolnshire has continued to see an increase in both 
the number of safeguarding concerns and safeguarding enquiries, this is thought to 
be due to an increase in knowledge and understanding of what constitutes a 
safeguarding concern, as well as an increased awareness of how to report 
safeguarding issues to the council.  

 

 
Neglect, physical abuse, and financial abuse continue to be the highest categories of 
abuse, consistent with both regional and national data trends. 

 

6
6

6

1
3

2
0 1
6

1
6

2
8

1 5
1

6 7
1

5

2
9

8

4
1

7 5
7

1

1 7 / 1 8 1 8 / 1 9 1 9 / 2 0

SAFEGUARDING ACTIVITY

Safeguarding concerns Progressed to enquiry Concluded enquiries

1%

7%

14%

33%

3%

24%

10%

5%

2%

Discriminatory Abuse

Domestic Abuse

Financial / Material abuse

Neglect or Acts of Omission

Organisational abuse

Physical abuse

Psychological abuse

Self-Neglect

Sexual abuse

Categories of Abuse - Concluded Enquiries

Page 31



 

16 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

47%

42%

7%

4%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

Care Home

Own Home

Other

Hospital

Location of alleged abuse and/or 
neglect - concluded enquiries 2019/20

24% 72% 4%

CONCLUDED ENQUIRIES - RISK 
OUTCOME

Risk Removed Risk Reduced Risk Remained

7% not 
supported

93% Supported 
by advocate

44% Lacked 
capacity

56% Had 
capacity

Mental Capacity and advocacy - concluded 
enquiries 2019/20 

At 79% risk identified and action 
taken remains the highest 

conclusion of concluded S42 
enquiries, indicating that a 
correct threshold for S42 

enquiries is in place. In 96% of 
enquiries the risk identified was 

either removed or reduced. 

The number of individuals who 
lacked capacity in relation to 
the safeguarding concern and 
were supported by an 
appropriate advocate is 93%, a 
slight increase compared with 
the previous year when 92% of 
adults were supported.  

 

 

Care homes have consistently 
been the highest location of 
alleged abuse and/or neglect in 
concluded enquiries for the last 
three years. This is seen as a 
positive indicator of the high 
quality care sector within North 
Lincolnshire, and of providers’ 

understanding of their 
safeguarding responsibilities.  

 

Page 32



 

17 
 

Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) 

MSP is about having conversations with people about how to respond in 
safeguarding situations in a way that enhances involvement, choice and control as 
well as improving quality of life, well-being, and safety. The Care Act 2014 advocates 
a person-centred rather than a process driven approach. MSP questions comply with 
the standards set by NHS digital, ensuring they are comparable with all other 
authorities across England. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF)  

People Who Use Services Feeling Safe.  

 

In North Lincolnshire 75.4% of people, using services reported they felt safe, this is 
5.7% higher than the regional average and a 1.2% increase on the previous year. 
This data was drawn from section 4A of the 2019/20 ASCOF which measures how 
well care and support services achieve the outcomes that matter most to people. 

 

 

75.4%

69.7%

66.0%

68.0%

70.0%

72.0%

74.0%

76.0%

1

People who use services feeling safe

North Lincolnshire Yorkshire and Humber

91% 
of individuals and / or their representatives 

were asked their views and wishes in relation 

to the S42 enquiry.  

97% 
of individuals and / or their representatives 

felt their views and wishes had either been 

partially or fully met.  

Page 33



 

18 
 

 
 

 

Safeguarding Adults Reviews 

What is a Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR)?  

A Safeguarding Adult Review takes place when agencies who worked with an adult 
who suffered abuse or neglect, come together to find out how they could have done 
things differently.  

The aim of a SAR is to promote effective learning and improvement.  
 
SARs should be used to explore examples of good practice, as well as those not so 

good, and should identify learning which can be applied to future cases. 

The law says Safeguarding Adults Boards must arrange a SAR when:  

There is reasonable cause for concern about how NLSAB, its partners or others 
worked together to safeguard the adult 

AND  

The adult died and NLSAB suspects the death resulted from abuse or neglect 

OR  

The adult is alive and NLSAB suspects the adult has experienced abuse or neglect.  

SARs are overseen by NLSAB Executive Safeguarding Adult Review Group, 
consisting of representatives from the board’s statutory partners (North Lincolnshire 

Council, North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group and Humberside Police). 
The group is chaired by Chief Superintendent Darren Wildbore of Humberside 
Police.  

 

7%

80%

13%

0%

Care Quality Commission ratings North 
Lincolnshire 2019/20

Outstanding Good Requires Improvement Inadequate

This information relates to the 
quality assurance of providers 
in each quarter following Care 
Quality Commission (CQC) 
inspections, indicating a high-
quality care sector with 87% of 
providers being inspected as 
either good or outstanding, 
nationally this is 84% and 81% 
in the Yorkshire and Humber 
region.  

 

 

Page 34



 

19 
 

Learning Review 

In 2019/20 the board completed one learning review. The group concluded that 
although the referral did not meet the criteria for a SAR, there would be benefit to 
collaborative learning, and agreed that a learning review in the form of a multi-
agency reflective workshop should take place.  

The case was in relation to two individuals, one of whom lost their life and the other 
who sustained life changing injuries. The case had been investigated by the police, 
and mental health services as part of their serious incident policy. Although there 
was no evidence to suggest the incident was as a result of any abuse or neglect, the 
reflective workshop identified some areas for improvement, and also areas of 
positive practice.  
 

Learning  

• Organisations should be clear of their own duties to report safeguarding 
concerns, and not be reliant that other agencies will do this. 

• Case notes should be clear and concise, particularly around decision making.   
 

Good practice  

• Evidence of a timely, and person-centred response by professionals involved.  
• Evidence that referrals to partner agencies were made on the same day. 
• Evidence that partner agencies worked together in a collaborative way.  

 

Learning from the case was shared with partner agencies and assurances given that 
all recommendations had been appropriately implemented.   

Adult A SAR 

In 2019 the board commissioned an independent SAR for Adult A.   
 
Adult A was an 87-year-old gentleman who suffered from Alzheimer’s disease. Adult 
A also had prostate disease and type 2 diabetes.  
 
Adult A had been cared for at home by his family until June 2018 when he was 
admitted to a care home by his family due to a deterioration in his Alzheimer’s 
presentation. Adult A’s placement was self-funded.  
 
Adult A was taken to hospital twice in July following falls. On the second occasion, 
medical staff were concerned by multiple bruises and raised a safeguarding concern.  
 
On the second admission Adult A was diagnosed with multiple secondaries from a 
cancer of an unknown primary source and died as a result of this seven weeks later. 
 
Concerns were raised in relation to how agencies had worked together to conduct 
the Section 42 enquiry.  
 

Page 35



 

20 
 

The SAR looked at the involvement of all organisations involved, and a number of 
learning points were identified in relation to the following themes:  
 
• transition from home to a care setting  
• managing falls and other behaviours in people with dementia  
• the effectiveness of the multi-agency safeguarding system  
• review of policies and procedures.  
 
The review identified 12 multi-agency recommendations. These recommendations 
have been accepted by the board; implementation is being monitored to ensure the 
learning has been put into practice with each organisation having developed an 
improvement plan to ensure changes are achieved.  
 
The Board is grateful for the way in which the family and partner organisations 
engaged with and contributed to this review.  
 
 
NLSAB Development Sessions  

It is a key function of the board to develop good safeguarding practice across the 
area and the board hold regular development sessions to keep members informed 
about significant safeguarding issues and provide updates on research and best 
practise. It is expected that each member will disseminate this knowledge within their 
individual organisations.  

The following development sessions with board members took place during 2019/20: 

• A presentation following the publication of the Learning Disability Mortality 
Reviews (LeDeR) Annual Report, giving members an overview of the statistical 
data in relation to reviews undertaken during the previous year, highlights of the 
key points, identified best practice and key recommendations. 

• A development session following the exposure of the abuse which took place 
at Whorlton Hall. 

• A briefing session in relation to Fraud and Scams, and the effects on adults 
who have care and support needs, facilitated by Humberside Police. 

• A group session about cuckooing, the impacts this has on adults who have care 
and support needs and the key indicators to look for. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36

http://www.northlincssab.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/LeDeR-Presentation.pdf
http://www.northlincssab.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/Whorlton-Hall.pdf
http://www.northlincssab.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/Fraud-Humberside-Police-presentation.pdf


 

21 
 

Conclusions and future priorities. 

In 2019/20 the board has made considerable progress in relation to its main 
objectives and priorities outlined within the strategic plan. The board will continue to 
raise awareness of safeguarding and ensure that safeguarding duties are embedded 
into partner practice. The board is committed to continuing to work in partnership to 
seek assurance and ensure that safeguarding practice within North Lincolnshire is 
continually reviewed and improved.   

In 2020/21 the board will review policies and procedures, considering experiences as 
a partnership, and in order to continue to improve and develop safeguarding 
practice.  

The board will be holding a safeguarding conference in the winter of 2020, designed 
and facilitated in partnership with adults with a lived experience. The three key 
themes for the event have been identified by them as loneliness, fraud, and 
cuckooing.  

 

Safeguarding during Covid-19 2020/21 

During the Covid-19 pandemic, the goal is to ensure people continue to have their 
care and support needs met and are safe and well, and to ensure effective 
partnership working as far as possible, being alert to the pressures which health and 
social care providers continue to be under.  

Duties and responsibilities to safeguarding adults remains a statutory duty and 
Sections 42-45 of the Care Act 2014 that relate to safeguarding adults have not 
changed or been ‘eased’. Consequently, safeguarding adults continues to be the 

responsibility of local authorities and partner agencies − to keep everybody safe from 

abuse or neglect. 

It is important that the board and its partner organisations continue to closely monitor 
safeguarding activity and use this intelligence to support flexible partnership 
responses to meet needs. The board will continue to review data to understand 
safeguarding trends locally and re-prioritise the strategic plan to support services to 
respond to any changes in the themes and trends of safeguarding activity within 
North Lincolnshire. 

A key priority for the board in 2020/21 is to gain assurance from partner agencies 
about how any impact of Covid-19 on local safeguarding arrangements is being 
managed, particularly looking at how the current situation is impacting on adults who 
have care and support needs and on the effectiveness of safeguarding 
arrangements within North Lincolnshire. 

 

Page 37



 

22 
 

 

 
North Lincolnshire Council 

 
Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process; these directly inform what happens.” 

North Lincolnshire Council takes a progressive and enabling approach to achieving its three priorities of: 

• Growing the economy  
• Keeping people safe and well  
• Enabling communities to flourish 

 
Our council values underpin everything we do:  
 

• Equality of opportunity so everyone can have a good quality of life.  
• Striving for excellence and high standards.  
• Using our resources wisely and with integrity.  
• Self-responsibility and people having choice and control over their own lives. 

 
The council has a strong focus on ensuring residents in receipt of longer-term services have maximum choice and control over 
their lives. All people in receipt of longer-term services have full knowledge of their level of subsidy and are able to choose the 
mechanisms for managing their personal budget.  The national average is 89.0% and North Lincolnshire is only one of 30 
Councils with an outturn of 100%.  The number of people choosing to take this as a direct payment is also increasing and 
again, we are higher than the England average. 

The positive outcomes in relation to choice and control is equally applicable for Carers.  More carers than the England average 
have control and full knowledge of their personal budget. 

P
age 38



 

23 
 

Strengths based practice and making safeguarding personal is embedded into social work and safeguarding practise within 
Adult and Community Wellbeing. In 92% of enquiries in 2019/20 the person or their representative was asked their views and 
wishes for the outcome of the enquiry. There has also been an increase from the previous year in the persons’ views and 
wishes being fully or partially achieved to 97%.   
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 

The North Lincolnshire Council training plan includes mandatory adult safeguarding awareness training for the whole workforce 
which is completed as part of a new employee’s induction and then every three years. This provides increased knowledge and 
understanding supporting the wider early identification of potential abuse and neglect by our workforce both in their roles and 
communities. Safeguarding champions are being embedded throughout the council.  
 
We have supported the wider social care sector through workshops on safeguarding, self-neglect and the Mental Capacity Act.  
 
The wellbeing and safety of all council employees has remained paramount during the coronavirus emergency with the 
information and resources provided to the workforce including a focus on safeguarding.  
 
The views of people who use adult services are gathered through an annual National Adult Social Care Survey. Most people 
(72%) told us that they found that information about services is easy to find.  
 
We are committed to ensuring information is accessible to everyone and are developing with people who have care and support 
needs an ‘easy read’ information pack and referral form.   
 
The Adult and Community Wellbeing offer continues to ensure people’s needs are met early. More people than the England 
average can access rehabilitation and reablement services. Rehabilitation services continue to improve the outcomes for people 
to remain at home longer.  We support more people than the England average to meet their needs early and regain their 
independence, 94.9% for North Lincolnshire compared to England average of 82.4%.   
 
Services, working together with the hospital, are continuing to perform well to ensure that people can return home as soon as 
possible.  
 
The Carers Survey supports the council to understand how services are enabling carers to be safe and well, have good health 
and wellbeing and improved quality of life.  The survey identified more people in North Lincolnshire have said: 

P
age 39



 

24 
 

 
• they experience a good quality of life 
• have as much social contact as they would like 
• are happy with the care and support they receive 
• are included in the plan for the person they care for and 
• find it easy to find advice and information 

 
All five Adult Social Care Outcome Framework indicators in relation to carers place North Lincolnshire above national, regional 
and comparator group outturns and in the top national quartile.  
 
Early in the coronavirus pandemic we recognised that people including those with care and support needs were at increased risk 
of domestic abuse. We supported our workforce do obtain further knowledge and skills through the completion of a 
comprehensive online training package for domestic abuse, endorsed by Skills for Care.  
 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 
The primary purpose of the council is to work with residents and partners to promote the safety and wellbeing of people living in 
North Lincolnshire. The councils’ role is to prevent harm and prioritise the most vulnerable. The council continues to work hard to 
keep people safe and leads partnership working across North Lincolnshire to promote wellbeing and improve health outcomes for 
everyone.  
 
The views of people who use adult services are gathered through an annual National Adult Social Care Survey. The results are 
very encouraging for North Lincolnshire, with more people who use services reporting a good quality of life and telling us they feel 
safe as a result of the support they receive.  Both measures are higher than the England average.   
 
Within Adult and Community Wellbeing we have strengthened the leadership in relation to safeguarding and Deprivation of 
Liberty Safeguards with additional dedicated Service and Specialist Team Leader posts. Through this restructuring of our social 
work teams, we have also increased the number of specialist social worker posts including Approved Mental Health 
Professionals and Best Interest Assessors.  
 
Where individuals lacked capacity to make decisions regarding safeguarding concerns, there has been an increase in 2019/20 
from the previous year in the proportion of people who were supported by an advocate, family member or friend. 

P
age 40



 

25 
 

 
Risk management and reduction is a critical element of safeguarding enquiries. In relation to the outcomes of safeguarding 
enquiries ‘risk identified, and action taken’ continued to be the highest (79%) outcome in 2019/20. The risk was removed or 
reduced for the vast majority (95%) of people in 2019/20, an increase from the previous year.  
                       
Although the Coronavirus Act 2020 included some amendments to the Care Act, local authority safeguarding duties under 
section 42 of the Care Act remained unchanged throughout the pandemic. We continued to respond to all safeguarding concerns 
received and undertake safeguarding enquiries. We strengthened the resilience of the Safeguarding Adults Team by adopting a 
one social work team model where safeguarding enquires are prioritised by the whole service and rotating social workers into the 
team.  
 
The social work teams have provided additional communication and welfare checks to those people who are most vulnerable 
throughout the coronavirus emergency.  
 
The care sector plays a vital role in keeping some of the most vulnerable people safe and well in North Lincolnshire. The council 
has worked with partners across the health and social care system to ensure that people living and working in care homes are 
supported during the unprecedented challenges that COVID-19 presents. North Lincolnshire has a long history of working 
together with the care sector and we have built on existing partnership arrangements to design our care home support plan. The 
care home support plan has been developed to support sector resilience through an enhanced offer of support to enable the 
delivery of quality care and the safety of both residents and staff. The care home support plan includes how we manage and 
support the following key elements of leadership, infection prevention and control, testing, personal protective equipment, clinical 
support and workforce support.  
 
Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented. 
        “I am sure professionals will work in my best interest, only getting involved as much as needed.” 

The council designs and delivers services based on an organisational model where people’s needs are met at the earliest 
point delaying and preventing the need for specialist services. The council works with communities to enable them to flourish 
supported with universal and community enablement services. We offer targeted support and services to enable people to 
recover and regain independence and specialist services for those people with acute and chronic needs.  

P
age 41



 

26 
 

Strengths based practise and the changing conversations model is well embedded in Adult and Community Wellbeing 
recognising and building on the strengths and resilience of the person and their family to promote their wellbeing.  

We extensively use digital solutions across the council including within Adult and Community Wellbeing. We offer modern 
solutions for example Alexa alongside more traditional telecare.  

The council worked with volunteers and community groups to champion the groundswell of community spirit from the 
beginning of the coronavirus outbreak, promoting ‘do one thing to help one person’.  

The council rapidly established an offer of advice and support for people who were extremely clinically vulnerable and advised 
to shield. The shielding and community enablement offer worked with the voluntary and community sectors to keep people 
safe, well and connected.  

Within Adult and Community Wellbeing we quickly identified the most vulnerable people and families at the start of the 
coronavirus pandemic to provide additional communication and wellbeing support.  

 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 

The role of the council is to lead the place of North Lincolnshire through engaging with communities and listening to residents.  

We lead strong and effective partnerships which promote wellbeing and improve health outcomes and opportunities for 
everyone.  

The voice of people with care and support needs continued to be strong across North Lincolnshire throughout 2019/20 
including through the Learning Disability Partnership and Carers Partnership.  

We have been creative and innovative including lending people smart devices and supporting them to safely use social media, 
to keep people connected to each other and us throughout the coronavirus outbreak.  

P
age 42



 

27 
 

We are actively working with Humberside Police and health partners to enhance partnership working in respect of 
safeguarding with a multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH).  

We have progressed work across the council and with wider partners to develop transitional safeguarding arrangements to 
improve the experience and outcomes of young people and their families as they become adults.  

We have commenced a partnership approach to the implementation of Liberty Protection Safeguards in North Lincolnshire.  

We participate fully in MAPPA, MARAC and MACE.  

We have worked across the council and with partners and the care home sector to develop and implement a comprehensive offer 
of support to care homes to support them to care safely for their residents and maintain resilience during the coronavirus 
outbreak 
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 
       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 

The North Lincolnshire Council training plan includes mandatory safeguarding awareness training for the whole workforce 
which is completed as part of a new employee’s induction and then every three years. The completion of this training is 
monitored by the cross council Safe Organisation Group. Adult and Community Wellbeing front line staff complete level two 
safeguarding training and level three training is also provided for those social workers and managers who complete and 
oversee enquiries. We have commissioned additional bespoke level three training from a specialist national training provider 
EDGE for autumn 2020.  

Reflective supervision and employee performance reviews are fully embedded within Adult and Community Wellbeing and 
monitored at a service and council level.  

We have an effective line of sight to practise through case file audits and utilise the safeguarding audit tool developed by the 
Yorkshire and Humber ADASS Group and PSW Network. The tool is split into three sections: concerns, section 42 enquiries 
and outcomes and incorporates the six principles of adult safeguarding.  

The Head of Social Work and Assurance is the chair of the Safeguarding Adult Board Protection and Accountability group.  

P
age 43



 

28 
 

  

We engaged fully in the Safeguarding Adult Review for Adult A including undertaking a comprehensive and self-reflective 
agency review of our involvement which informed the implementation of a robust action plan. We have positively supported 
members of our teams to reflect and learn from participation in the SAR.  

We have reviewed and updated our internal Adult and Community Wellbeing Safeguarding Adults Practise Guidance in 2020. 
In addition, we have introduced a policy in respect of referrals for an autopsy for a person with an open safeguarding enquiry.  

The council audit and assurance plan for 2019/20 included an audit of adult safeguarding which provides not only assurance 
but an opportunity for further learning and enhancing our safeguarding responses.  

Following the Coronavirus Act 2020, which made amendments to the Care Act we developed a framework for implementation of 
the Care Act Easements which details the governance and operational arrangements if implementation required. Throughout the 
pandemic, we have been closely monitoring our own workforce capacity and care sector capacity. The measures we have put in 
place have prevented the need to seek to streamline assessment and support planning or prioritise the meeting of care and 
support needs.   
 
We actively utilise and apply the range of guidance available from SCIE, ADASS, the Department of Health and Social Care to 
inform safeguarding and social work services and interventions.  
 
We contribute to and utilise regional and national networks and forums to share and develop best practise. 
 

P
age 44



 

29 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‘Without the help and support of my family I would 

find it very difficult to continue to care for my sister. 

Having a direct payment allows me to arrange carers 

to come into assist me and allows me time to attend 

events and appointments. The respite and day services 

this pays for allows me time to take a break which is 

much needed.’  

 

A social worker from the Safeguarding Adult Team spoke 

to a man about the outcome of the safeguarding enquiries 

regarding cuckooing. As it was difficult to speak to him to 

a home, she went to find him  on a bench where he often 

sat. He said ‘that chat has helped. I didn’t want any fuss, 

but I’ve appreciated the advice and any further problems I 

know where to come to for support.’ He thanked them for 

locating him to discuss the outcome.  

 

 

‘The help I can tap into in this area of N Lincs is very good - 

all the relevant agencies i.e.: adult social care, Alzheimer's 

society, admiral nurse knows and respect each other and 

always point me in the right direction for the help I need. 

They are lovely people, so kind and caring, and though 

busy, always make me feel as if I am valued and my needs 

are as important as my husbands. I feel reassured by their 

attention even though caring is still hard!’ 

 

 ‘I look after my mother who has Alzheimer’s. I have 

contacted the adult care team to discuss an 

emergency plan if needed in the future. I have booked 

a place on the next understanding Dementia 

programme. I have also started to go to Dementia 

peer support group meetings, all of these things have 

made such a difference to me and are a great’ 

 

P
age 45



 

30 
 

 
 

North Lincolnshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
 

Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process, these directly inform what happens.” 
North Lincolnshire CCG are core members of North Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adult Board, and also the key commissioners of 
health services provided to the North Lincolnshire population.  
 
Providers of services commissioned by North Lincolnshire CCG are expected to work closely with all service users including 
adults with care and support needs to ensure they are able to influence the services they receive, including any assessment of 
safeguarding need, or activity to reduce risk. This expectation is set out in safeguarding standards which are included in all 
contracts.  
 
Through participation in SAB and other multi-agency partnership activity, NLCCG has promoted a consistent and integrated 
approach to safeguarding individuals and combatting contextual risks, whilst ensuring service users are empowered to influence 
personal outcomes. This approach is also reflected in the direct work that the CCG’s clinical assessment and safeguarding 
services provide. 
 
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 
Prevention is one of the 6 identified Delivery Programmes for NLCCG in 2019-2024, and whilst, as the key commissioner of 
health services in North Lincolnshire, the identified goal to “support our population to be as healthy as possible …” may be 
perceived as preventing physical or mental ill-health, and thus reducing the demand on health and care services, this approach 
aligns closely with the NLSAB focus on issues which will make the greatest difference to safeguarding people in North 
Lincolnshire. NLCCG recognises that the prevention of safeguarding concerns, or early intervention to support adults with care 
and support needs is part of their approach to Prevention.,  
 
The NLCCG Head of Safeguarding chairs the SAB’s subgroup which focuses on Prevention and Proportionality. 
 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 

P
age 46



 

31 
 

NLCCG is committed to ensuring all individuals are protected from harm. 
 
During 2019/20, NLCCG strengthened its safeguarding governance arrangements with the creation of a Safeguarding 
Assurance Group with membership from across all Directorates, including representation from commissioning and contracting 
staff. 
 
CCG staff particularly those involved in commissioning individual packages of care, and those involved in incident management 
and complaints processes work alongside the safeguarding team to identify and where appropriate support individuals and 
families to report abuse and neglect. The CHC/case management and safeguarding team work closely with NLC Safeguarding 
Adult Team to support individuals and families to be part of safeguarding processes. 
 
The NLCCG Director of Nursing and Quality (Executive Lead for Safeguarding) is the SAB Portfolio Lead for Protection and 
Accountability. 
 
Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented. 
        “I am sure professionals will work in my best interest, only getting involved as much as needed.” 
NLCCG Safeguarding and CHC teams (and where necessary other staff) work closely with the North Lincolnshire Council 
Safeguarding Adult Team, other health organisations, and partner organisations to ensure appropriate and proportionate 
information sharing, clinical and safeguarding assessments to inform plans to protect and support individuals. 
 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 
North Lincolnshire CCG are core members of the NL Safeguarding Adult Board, represented on the Executive Group by the 
Director of Nursing and Quality, and on the full Board, and in the work of the SAB by the Head of Safeguarding, Named GP 
and other members of the CCG Safeguarding Team. 
 
The CCG clinical teams work closely with the North Lincolnshire Council Safeguarding Adult Team, other health organisations, 
and partner organisations to ensure appropriate and proportionate decision making and planning with a focus on the most 
appropriate outcome for adults at risk.  
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 

P
age 47



 

32 
 

       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 
North Lincolnshire CCG has a Safeguarding Policy which is publicly available. 
This outlines the roles and responsibilities of all staff and officers of the CCG, signposts to SAB procedures and provides specific 
single agency/ organisational guidance which complements the SAB procedures. 
 
This policy also reflects the CCG’s responsibility to ensure and assure themselves that organisations from which they 
commission have effective safeguarding arrangements in place. This is fulfilled via the inclusion of safeguarding standards in 
contracts of all commissioned services. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 48



 

33 
 

 
Humberside Police 

 
Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process, these directly inform what happens.” 
Humberside Police have a monthly audit regime to monitor outcomes for all victims to ensure they receive a good service. 
Lesson learnt are cascaded in the organisation. 
 
Humberside Police also takes part in Multiagency audits on a regular basis and fully supports and engages with all types of 
safeguarding adult reviews and serious case reviews. 
 
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 
All Humberside Police staff are undergoing Vulnerability Training. Front line officers and staff understand that their 
responsibilities include taking action to safeguard individuals as well as referring to partner agencies. Guidance has been 
provided to staff in 2020 around when and how to make a referral. The Force uses technology to allow for prompt and accurate 
raising of concerns. 

Humberside police are also engaged with the National Policing Vulnerability Knowledge and Practice Programme and self-
assesses against the standards set as part of the programme. 

 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 
There is a performance review structure in place especially across the Protecting Vulnerable Persons Unit which examines 
performance around safeguarding. This ensures that there is a qualitative as well as a quantitative assessment and informs local 
and force performance accountability meetings. 
 

P
age 49



 

34 
 

The Force is developing a Safeguarding Governance Unit which will enhance the ability to conduct targeted assessments of 
performance through the multi-agency audits and the internal audits. 
 
Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented. 
        “I am sure professionals will work in my best interest, only getting involved as much as needed.” 
The Police will support victims and vulnerable persons as a core part of our service ensuring we engage with victims to seek 
their wishes on the outcomes.  

The views and concerns of the victims are at the heart of police processes. Assessments and investigations are taken with the 
views of the victim or the person at risk of abuse or neglect as an influential factor in progressing the case.  

To enable inclusive engagement for all people investigators use the support networks to facilitate full engagement with the 
criminal justice system. 

The police also engage in processes to obtain and consider the experiences that have come into contact with the service. This 
can be through specialist partner agencies such as domestic abuse support agencies and victim support. 
 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 
Humberside Police aim to provide a consistent service across the Force. Services and partnership processes have been 
developed with the different agencies in mind. Humberside Police fully understands the importance of working in partnership with 
all agencies and has police representation in the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub who understand the thresholds and is 
responsible for applying any local agreements. 
 
There is also representation at senior level on the Safeguarding Adults Board and associated sub-groups. 
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 
       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 
The commitment to protecting the vulnerable is reinforced in publications including the Police and Crime Plan for Humberside 
(April 2017 to March 2021) and the Plan on a Page which highlights the key priorities for the Force including keeping people safe 
and protecting the Vulnerable. 

P
age 50



 

35 
 

 
The Police comply with our Victims Code of Practice to ensure victims of crime are informed of our role and receive regular 
updates on the matter concerned. This is audited on a monthly basis at local and Force level to identify best practice.   
 
It has been recognised that new staff to the PVPU or MASH DDM role require an induction process and this is being developed 
and progress monitored though the Force Vulnerability Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 51



 

36 
 

 
Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Trust 

 
Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process, these directly inform what happens.” 
Patients receiving care within the Trust, and their families are involved in the development of plans regarding their care and 
discharge. They are consulted wherever possible when a safeguarding concern is identified. This will generally include reflection 
on the relative merits of making and not making a referral. 
 
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 
Safeguarding Adults (SA) training is delivered within the Trust. 
Training figures 
SA L1 – 92% up 1% 
SA L2 - 86% up 1% 
SA L3 – 54% down 1% 
SA L4 – 86% down 2% 
 
Training includes a clear request to provide all potential victims with contact details that could provide support services should 
they want to leave the situation they are living in. 
 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 
Vulnerability ward rounds take place and include the Named Nurse for Mental Capacity Act (MCA) /Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards (DoLS), Named Nurse for Adults as well as members of the wider vulnerability team. This gives patients and staff the 
opportunity to identify as well as discuss concerns and formulate action plans. 
 
The Safeguarding Named professionals within NLaG work closely with each other and this will further develop as we ensure that 
the Trust is ready for Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) in 2022. 
 

P
age 52



 

37 
 

Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented. 
        “I am sure professionals will work in my best interest, only getting involved as much as needed.” 
The Trust Safeguarding professionals work closely with the vulnerability professionals to identify patients who require additional 
support and to ensure that appropriate action plans are developed for these patients. 
 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 
The vulnerability team is moving to join the safeguarding team with NLaG, this will strengthen the already good working 
relationship between the two teams and help to ensure a smoother service for patients as required. 
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 
       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 
NLaG continues to work closely with partner agencies and have proactive representatives at both adult and children’s boards and 
subgroups. 
 
In line with the Boards objectives and priorities the Trust is investing in improving the organisations understanding of the 
principles of the Mental Capacity Act 2005 to improve outcomes for patients that have foundations in rights-based care. This is 
particularly important in light of the forthcoming Liberty Protection Safeguards and the challenges this will present for Acute 
Trusts such as ours. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 53



 

38 
 

 
Rotherham Doncaster and South Humber NHS Mental Health Trust  

 
Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process, these directly inform what happens.” 
Staff working within RDaSH adopt a Making Safeguarding Personal approach to all aspects of the Safeguarding process. All 
patients or their representative are directly consulted at the point of any concern being submitted and are kept informed and 
updated throughout the process. Work has been completed by a group of patients in conjunction with the Safeguarding Team to 
create a user-friendly leaflet with regards to safeguarding and the processes involved within it. 
 
All staff within the Trust receive Safeguarding training, which is commensurate to their post and all levels make reference to the 6 
safeguarding principles and how these are applied in practice, in order to empower those who access our services. 
 
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 
All patients have access to the keeping safe the RDaSH way leaflet. Additional resources also include; videos for the signing 
community and all literature can be translated into a variety of languages. We routinely use translators to support face to face 
discussions when English is not the first language of the patient. 
 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 
All staff within the Trust undertake safeguarding training which is commensurate to their post, and will ensure they are 
appropriately equipped to support patients to raise concerns.  

The patients within the Trust have access to advocacy services who can support them through the various meetings and contacts 
in relation to the safeguarding process. 
Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented. 
        “I am sure professionals will work in my best interest, only getting involved as much as needed.” 
Our staff take the time to explain the purpose of safeguarding and the individuals involvement in the process. Attention is given to 
ensuring that the person is fully aware of how information will be shared and the purpose for this.  

P
age 54



 

39 
 

 
Safeguarding plans are routinely completed with the patient to ensure that they are agreeable to the suggestions being made in 
order to safeguard them in the least restrictive and proportionate manner, paying attention to their human rights and rights to 
autonomy. 
 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 
Staff within the Trust continue to be committed to Multi-Agency working to ensure the most appropriate approach to safeguarding 
the patients they support.  
 
Representatives from the Trust continue to attend the Safeguarding Adults Board, subgroups and task groups as and when 
required. 
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 
       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 
Anyone who accesses the Trust services will have a nominated key worker who will outline their role and responsibilities in 
respect of the care to be provided. All patients are made aware of their right to complain and will be supported to raise any issues 
or concerns.  
 
We also encourage the completion of ‘Your Opinion Counts’ surveys - the content of which is used to inform the development of 
teams and services within the Trust. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55



 

40 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Making Safeguarding Personal – “The patient as the Educator”. 

Mary is a 43yr old lady who has accessed services for over 20 years – she has had a number of 

in- patient admissions and on- going support from MH services whilst residing in the 

community. Mary shared her story with a Safeguarding Lead and her named nurse over a 

number of visits to the ward. Mary expressed an interest in the role and function of the 

safeguarding team within RDaSH and during discussion “cited” a number of occasions and 

events during her life where she felt she had not been appropriately safeguarded or protected. 

Mary felt she wanted to summarise her life story which she did in the form of an extended 

essay, once completed  time was taken to explore with Mary how such incidents would/should 

be managed now  by adopting  a Making Safeguarding Personal approach  and utilising the Six 

Safeguarding principle. During this time Mary was involved, with the Safeguarding Lead ,in 

creating her own version of the six principles , making a video about her experience of 

safeguarding  and contributed to staff awareness sessions. Mary`s video has been shared during 

Safeguarding Adult Boards events and her work has been included in the patient project 

“Keeping Safe the RDaSH way”. Finally Mary was involved in creating her own safeguarding 

protection plan which was effectively implemented when she made the transition from the 

ward into her first independent tenancy. 

 

P
age 56



 

41 
 

 
ONGO 

 
Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process, these directly inform what happens.” 
A conversation takes place with all tenants prior to any safeguarding concern being made.  This conversation asks the tenant 
what it is that they hope to achieve in the future in relation to feeling safe.  However difficult it may be – if a tenant does not want 
an alert to be made then their wishes are followed (unless others are at risk or a crime is being committed).  However, internal 
support is still available to the tenant and they are advised that if they change their mind about action to be taken then they can 
always contact us again. 
 
Within Ongo’s support service, our customer risk assessment / support plan template contains a question in relation to 
safeguarding.  Our support staff are all fully trained to ask appropriate questions that may encourage customers to answer 
honestly. 
 
Ongo has a Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults Policy.  There are safeguarding guidance procedures in place to assist staff in 
recognising and reporting through their concerns. 
 
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 
Safeguarding articles are included in our tenant magazine (Key News – which is distributed to around 10,000 homes twice a year, 
as well as an additional two digital Key News editions during the year). 
 
There is a section on Ongo’s website that provides information on safeguarding and also other relevant contact numbers. 
 
Ongo has a dedicated person who deals with safeguarding and provides support and training to staff members and tenant groups. 
 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 
All staff undertake mandatory safeguarding training as a new starter. 

P
age 57



 

42 
 

 
Customer facing staff receive refresher safeguarding awareness annually.  
 
Ongo has a safeguarding vulnerable adults and children’s policy and procedure.  
 
Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented. 
        “I am sure professionals will work in my best interest, only getting involved as much as needed.” 
If a customer has capacity they are encouraged to make their own decisions in relation to actions being taken.  
Ongo has a positive risk-taking policy/procedure. 
 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 
Joint working is a very important part of safeguarding.  Our Support Services Manager represents Ongo at the safeguarding sub-
groups.  This allows us to influence decision making and keep up to date with joint working practices. 
Where required, staff attend multi-agency meetings where the best interest of the tenant is always at the heart of the process. 
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 
       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 
All staff are trained and aware of the importance of reporting their concerns and that safeguarding is everyone’s business. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ongo Case Study 

Mr G was not receiving the care he required from an external care 

company. This meant that the family as well as neighbours were required 

to fill the gap and provide care to Mr G. Mr G did not have capacity and 

the family were finding it difficult to cope.  Joint working between Ongo, 

the family and NLC resulted in a move to more suitable accommodation 

and a care package which fitted Mr G’s needs.     

P
age 58



 

43 
 

 
Healthwatch North Lincolnshire 

 
Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process, these directly inform what happens.” 
If safeguarding referrals are made, this is always discussed with the individual, considering their views and wishes. 
 
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 
Staff and volunteers are all trained in safeguarding and can recognise different types of abuse. All safeguarding updates are 
shared with the team, who are able to convey this to service users when needed. 
 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 
We have a robust process for volunteers to escalate any potential safeguarding issues that come through from the telephone 
buddy service and the staff team support the individual in the safeguarding process. 
 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 
We liaise with other professionals involved in the individuals care to ensure the best outcome. 
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 
       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 
Where possible we support individuals to understand the role of professionals. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 59



 

44 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Healthwatch – case study 

I have a mental health condition and was feeling very isolated and 

depressed. I was neglecting my self-care, had stopped eating 

properly and was struggling to continue living independently 

without support. My telephone buddy helped me understand that I 

needed help and supported me to access support from adult social 

services and mental health services. I now have a package in place 

and do not feel as scared and alone. 

P
age 60



 

45 
 

 
National Probation Service 

 
Empowerment: People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent. 
     “I am asked what outcomes I want from the safeguarding process, these directly inform what happens.” 
The NPS is a criminal justice agency, responsible for managing those offenders in the community, and before their release from 
custody, who pose the highest risk of harm and have committed the most serious crimes. We engage with those individuals under 
our supervision, to support them to complete their orders/licences and give them the best opportunity to turn their lives around.  We 
undertake an annual survey of our service users and a regional forum was well-embedded pre-Covid-19.  

Under the statutory Victim Contact Scheme, the NPS ensures that victims of the most serious offending are provided with 
appropriate information and are offered the opportunity to make representations about licence conditions on release.   
 
Prevention: It is better to take action before harm occurs. 
  “I receive clear and simple information about what abuse is, how to recognise it and seek help.” 
Service users receive an induction, which covers our information sharing agreement and requirements to work with the 
partnership to share information of concern. It also includes advice on how the individuals we work with can report concerns/seek 
support etc.   
 
Protection: Support and representation for those in greatest need 
  “I get help and support to report abuse and neglect. I get help so I can take part in the safeguarding process.” 
The NPS protects the public through our assessment and management of those offenders who have committed the most serious 
offences. Our staff can make an important contribution to the early identification of care and support needs of offenders in the 
community, including offenders who are carers. We work collaboratively across agencies to reduce risk and ensure individuals are 
appropriately supported. 
 
Proportionality: The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented. 
        “I am sure professionals will work in my best interest, only getting involved as much as needed.” 
We work with Safeguarding Adults Board members via the Humberside Multi-Agency Public Protection Arrangements (MAPPA).  
Together we have ensured the proportionate and necessary risk management of adult offenders, balanced with support for their 

P
age 61



 

46 
 

rehabilitation, to reduce longer-term risk.   
 
Partnership: Local solutions through services working with communities. Communities have a part to play in preventing, 
detecting and reporting abuse and neglect. 
  “I am confident professionals will work together to get the best result for me.” 
The NPS works in partnership with a range of agencies to achieve our aims of protecting the public, supporting victims and 
reducing reoffending, for example: 

Working with CRCs and other service providers to motivate service users and support them to desist from offending. 

Sharing information with domestic abuse agencies through MARAC and MATAC, to support the protection of victims and 
commissioning services from the CRC to enable offenders to change their behaviour; Contributing to Prevent and Channel 
processes. 

Signposting female service users to domestic abuse services, which opens up access for them to a range of services, including a 
refuge.   
 
Accountability:  High challenge, high support and transparency in delivering safeguarding 
       “I understand the role of everyone in my life and so do they.” 
See above re our induction process. We also work transparently with service users regarding our enforcement processes, 
whenever that can be done safely 
 

 

P
age 62



 

Report of the Chief Operating Officer, NL CCG  Agenda Item 12  
              Meeting 18 January 2020                                     

 
 

NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 

North Lincolnshire System Escalation and Recovery 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2.1 System resilience 
 
The North Lincolnshire Health and Care system has established processes for 
monitoring the resilience of the system, underpinned by an escalation framework; 
OPEL (Operational Pressures Escalation Levels Framework). This is a standard 
framework used across the country and enables regional and national assessment of 
health and care system pressures. 
 
These processes and framework enable the system to assess, monitor and report 
service and demand pressures in a systematic way. The framework articulates the 
actions each organisation should take at each level in order to manage the system 
pressure. As a result, a significant rise in pressure within one organisation will result 
in a response across all organisations in support. 
 
The system is required to report to NHS England/Improvement (NHS E/I) on a regular 
basis; currently daily including weekends and Bank Holidays. In addition, the system 
is required to respond to additional plan requests from NHS E/I for winter plans and 
specific periods such as Easter, Christmas and New Year. 
 
Regional reporting requirements are set out by NHS E/I which includes daily reporting 
over the winter period. In year, this commenced in early December and is expected to 
run until Easter 2021. 
 

                
Health and Wellbeing Board 

 
1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT  

 
1.1 This report provides the Health and Wellbeing Board with an overview of 

the current resilience and escalation processes to support delivery 
through the Covid pandemic and sets out the current plans regarding 
Covid vaccination and maintenance of non-Covid care to the North 
Lincolnshire population. 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 12



 

Locally the system monitoring and management is undertaken on the Northern 
Lincolnshire footprint, aligned to the footprint of the A/E Delivery Board. System 
partners report their OPEL status and any demand or delivery pressures on a daily 
basis, and join a daily call to discuss issues and agree actions across partner 
organisations. Supporting this is an escalation process including a system wide call of 
Senior Responsible Officers (SRO) to ensure the escalation plan is successfully 
implemented and consider viable alternative options as required, such as approval of 
mutual aid across organisations. The SRO calls are diaries daily and can be stepped 
up and down as required. 
 
The Northern Lincolnshire system reviews and develops a surge plan on an annual 
basis, including the submission of plans to NHS E/I. In September 2020, the 
Department of Health and Social Care published Adult social care: coronavirus 
(COVID-19) winter plan 2020 to 2021. This policy document set out the main actions 
to be taken by local authorities, NHS organisations, and social care providers, 
including in the voluntary and community sector across three priority areas;  

• Ensuring everyone who needs care or support can get high-quality, timely and 
safe care throughout the autumn and winter period  
• Protecting people who need care, support or safeguards, the social care 
workforce, and carers from infections including COVID-19  
• Making sure that people who need care, support or safeguards remain 
connected to essential services and their loved ones whilst protecting 
individuals from infections including COVID-19  
 

The expectations set out in the policy have been incorporated into the North 
Lincolnshire Winter plans to ensure the system has a single agreed plan for partners 
to work together to ensure the needs of the population are met including during periods 
of winter surge in demand. 
 
To complement this plan, the Care Home Support Plan was further updated. This plan 
describes how North Lincolnshire Council, North Lincolnshire CCG and providers will 
support care homes to minimise risk of infection through ensuring access to Personal 
Protective Equipment, staff training, health service support and Covid outbreak 
monitoring and management and supporting access to flu vaccinations for residents 
and staff. 
 
Whilst our established systems and processes are in place to manage surge in 
demand, it is recognised and predicted that the Covid pandemic would result in a 
‘super-surge’ in demand significantly higher that our standard escalation framework 
would manage. In response, partners have developed a super-surge plan. Developed 
at Place throughout the Humber, Coast and Vale, these plans have been collated and 
signed off at Integrated Care System (ICS) level and provide assurance that all 
partners have plans and will work together across the ICS as required to manage the 
super-surge. 
 
In addition to the requirements to manage surge and super-surge demand, there 
remains the requirement to continue elective activity, with the aim of delivering pre-
Covid levels of activity. To support this NHS E/I has contracted with Independent 
Sector Providers  to enable Trusts to utilise the IS capacity to manage cancer and 
urgent cases on the waiting lists. This contracting arrangement has been extended to 

Page 64



 

end March 2021, Northern Lincolnshire and Goole NHS Foundation Trust is utilising 
capacity at St Hugh’s Grimsby for this purpose, however the capacity and setting is 
not suitable for all procedures. The Trust has also maximised the use of Goole District 
Hospital as a separate elective care site. 
 
2.2 System priorities 2020/21 
 
In late December, NHS E/I set out priorities for the remainder of 2020/21; 
 

• Responding to Covid-19 demand  
• Implementation of the Covid-19 vaccination programme  
• Maximising capacity in all settings to treat non-Covid-19 patients  
• Responding to other emergency demand and managing winter pressures  
• Supporting the health and wellbeing of our workforce  

 
The North Lincolnshire system was already progressing all of these priorities.  
 
The system has taken steps to ensure timely discharge of patients from hospital to 
ensure bed availability for those needing admission, achieved through the use of 
designated residential beds and health funded beds for those patients fit for discharge 
and the use of hospice beds for appropriate patients to step down from hospital. 
 
The Covid Vaccination programme commenced in December and the details of 
progress with this are set out in a separate paper.   
 
Both primary and secondary care are focusing on non-Covid care needs, addressing 
backlogs to treatment and screening programmes. The benefits of changes made 
during wave one have been reviewed and continued where this has shown benefits. 
 
Investment into support for the workforce has been made to ensure staff have access 
to a range of support including ‘wobble rooms’, mental health support from RDaSH 
and the development of a resilience hub. 
 
2.3 Tackling Health Inequalities 
 
The South Primary Care Network was accepted onto a Humber, Coast and Vale pilot 
of Population Health Management pre-Covid. In response to Covid all PCNs in the 
pilot have redirected their plans to focus on addressing health inequalities which raise 
the rise of adverse outcomes of Covid. This work is progressing well, supported by the 
CCG and Public Health and is starting to assess the target at risk group to provide 
interventions to reduce risk. The learning from this will be used to extend the approach 
across all networks. In addition, the CCG prevention plan, supported by Public Health 
is focused on people at risk of coronary heart disease and targeted interventions at 
the most at risk.  
 
All providers are required to undertake and record regular risk assessments of their 
staff and implement management plans to address the needs of those at increased 
risk of Covid. This includes temporary redeployment where required to reduce the risk 
of exposure. 

Page 65



 

 
3. OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

3.1 No options are presented.  
 
 
4. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS 
  

4.1     This paper sets out the current resilience processes and Covid response  
 

5. FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (e.g. LEGAL, HR, 
PROPERTY, IT, COMMUNICATIONS etc.) 

  
5.1     not applicable 

 
6. OTHER RELEVANT IMPLICATIONS (e.g. CRIME AND DISORDER, 

EQUALITIES, COUNCIL PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL, RISK etc.)      
 

6.1  The development of the new variant has impacted on the non-elective 
activity in NLAG. This then impacts on the rate of recovery. The Trust is 
currently managing this through the use of Goole and St Hugh’s 
hospitals, however the ease and pace of transmission may affect the 
capacity and staff availability of these sites.  

 
7. OUTCOMES OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (IF APPLICABLE) 
 

7.1     Not Applicable 
  

8. OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION AND CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 
DECLARED 

 
8.1     None 
 

                       
9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

9.1      The Health and Wellbeing Board is asked to note the report. 
 

NL CCG Chief Operating Officer 
 

 
Church Square House 
SCUNTHORPE 
North Lincolnshire 
Author: Jane Ellerton, Head of Strategic Commissioning, NL CCG 
Date: 06/01/21 
 
Background Papers used in the preparation of this report - None 
 

Page 66


	Agenda
	4 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 21 December 2020.
	7 COVID-19 - Outbreak Management and Control.
	NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL
	1. OBJECT AND KEY POINTS IN THIS REPORT
	2. BACKGROUND INFORMATION
	3. OPTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION
	4. ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS
	5. FINANCIAL AND OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (e.g. LEGAL, HR, PROPERTY, IT, COMMUNICATIONS etc.)
	6. OTHER RELEVANT IMPLICATIONS (e.g. CRIME AND  DISORDER, EQUALITIES, COUNCIL PLAN, ENVIRONMENTAL, RISK etc.
	6.1  Implications and risks associated with Covid-19 are being monitored constantly and mitigations being implemented as necessary.
	7. OUTCOMES OF INTEGRATED IMPACT ASSESSMENT (IF APPLICABLE)
	8. OUTCOMES OF CONSULTATION AND CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS DECLARED
	9. RECOMMENDATIONS


	8 COVID-19 - Vaccination Programme.
	11 Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report, 2019/20.
	12 Recovery and Responding to Winter Pressures.



